
15 November 2019 

Dear Sir/Madam 

Proposed Plan Change 5A (Lindis Integrated Water Management) to the Regional Plan 
Water for Otago 

Purpose of this letter 

1 The purpose of this letter is to encourage you to provide your views to the Otago 
Regional Council (ORC) on the appropriateness of splitting the total primary allocation 
limit for water takes in the Lindis catchment in Schedule 2A of the operative Regional 
Plan: Water for Otago (Water Plan) into four separate primary allocation limits for 
different parts of the catchment. 

2 These proposed changes are intended to ensure that the environmental outcomes and 
flow patterns that are likely to occur upon the introduction of a minimum flow of 550 l/s 
at the Ardgour Road flow monitoring site and implementation of a new way of taking 
water (the “galleries scheme” described in paragraph 13 below) proposed by the Lindis 
Catchment Group (LCG) are not eroded by future transfers of water permits under 
S136(2)(b) of the Resource Management Act 1991. 

3 The Environment Court has directed that the ORC must consult on this matter with the 
farmers in general and the LCG in particular, as well as the Otago Fish and Game 
Council and the Tarras community. 

4 Please provide your response to ORC by 6 December 2019 (contact details are 
included below in paragraph 30). 

Background 

5 Plan Change 5A to the Water Plan was notified in August 2015. It addressed flows in 
the Lindis catchment. 

6 Among other things, it proposed a summer minimum flow of 750 l/s at the Ardgour 
Road flow monitoring site and a primary allocation limit of 1,000 l/s. Primary allocation 
is the maximum amount of water that can be taken by all users holding primary 
consents at one time and no further primary allocation will be granted in the catchment. 

7 After hearing submissions on the proposed plan change, the Council increased the 
primary allocation limit to 1,200 l/s subject to a summer minimum flow of 900 l/s at the 
Ardgour Road flow monitoring site. 

8 The LCG appealed that decision to the Environment Court. In its appeal, the LCG 
sought a primary allocation limit of 1,900 l/s subject to a summer minimum flow of 450 
l/s at the Ardgour Road flow monitoring site. 

9 A number of other parties joined the plan change appeal. 
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10 Court-assisted mediation was held in December 2016 and July 2017. 

11 Between the two rounds of mediation further technical investigations and studies were 
carried out. 

12 At mediation in mid-2017, the ORC and the LCG agreed that the plan change appeal 
should be resolved on the basis that the primary allocation limit be 1,650 l/s (later 
reduced to 1,639 l/s and then rounded to 1640 l/s) with a summer minimum flow of 550 
l/s at the Ardgour Road flow monitoring site. 

13 This agreement is based on the takes from 4 major existing races being discontinued 
and placed with a system of 13 “gallery takes” to be located further downstream (the 
“galleries scheme”). A gallery takes groundwater from immediately beside a surface 
water body, remaining effectively surface water. 

14 The 4 races are: 

• The Tarras Race;

• The Ardgour Race;

• The Point Race (sometimes called the Rutherford Race); and

• The Begg-Stacpoole Race.

15 The LCG applied for resource consents for the galleries scheme and for a number of 
other resource consents to replace expiring deemed permits, often known as mining 
privileges, and other rights to take water. 

16 Those resource consent applications were also referred to the Environment Court for 
a decision. 

17 The plan change appeal and the application for resource consents were heard together 
by the Environment Court. 

18 The hearing took place in Wanaka and Cromwell in the weeks of 5 and 12 November 
2018 and the week of 28 January 2019. 

19 The Environment Court decision on Proposed Plan Change 5A was released on 7 
October 2019. 

20 In it the Court concluded that the minimum flow at the Ardgour Road flow monitoring 
site should be fixed at 550 l/s and that the primary allocation limit for the Lindis 
catchment should be fixed at 1,640 l/s. 

21 A second Environment Court decision on the applications to replace permits with new 
consents was issued on 8 November 2019. In this decision the Environment Court 
provisionally granted water permits to the members of the LCG to take water from the 
Lindis River. 
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Subject matter of the consultation 

22 In its decision on the plan change the Environment Court recognised that takes from 
tributaries operate under a lower reliability of supply (average of 56% reliability) 
than takes from the main stem (calculated at 84% reliability). Transfers of a take 
from a tributary to the Lindis main stem or transfers of takes to locations further 
upstream of the Ardgour Road flow recorder or downstream of the Ardgour Road flow 
monitoring site can therefore have an impact on environmental values in the main 
stem. Potential impacts may include: 

• Increase in overall water abstraction during low flow conditions (Transfers from
tributaries to main stem)

• Reduced reliability to water users along the main stem (Transfers from tributaries
to main stem);

• Reduced flows in upstream reaches (Transfer of takes to upstream locations);

• Reduced flows downstream of the Ardgour Road flow monitoring site leading to
increased stream depletion effects/surface flow loss to groundwater and less flow
at the Lindis/Clutha confluence than predicted (transfer of takes to locations
downstream of the Ardgour Road flow monitoring site)

23 The Environment Court considered several options for mitigating the risks associated 
with such transfers, including: 

• setting further restrictions in the Water Plan;

• adding conditions to individual water permits; or

• setting conditions in a low flow management plan.

24 The issue that the Environment Court has directed ORC to consult on is the need for 
adding restrictions on transferability of water takes in the Lindis catchment and the 
appropriateness of breaking up the primary allocation limit1 expressed in Schedule 2A 
of the Water Plan, which is currently set by Decision [2019] NZEnvC 166 at 1,640 l/s, 
to become: 

• 132 l/s from the Lindis catchment from its headwaters to the Lindis Peak flow
recorder;

• 265 l/s from tributaries of the main stem between the Lindis Peak flow recorder and
the confluence of the Clutha River/Mata-Au;

• 1,104 l/s from the main stem of the Lindis River and the Lindis Alluvial ribbon
Aquifer between the Lindis Peak flow recorder and the Ardgour Road flow
monitoring site; and

• 138 l/s from groundwater takes (connected groundwater takes allocated as surface
water) in the Lindis catchment downstream of the Ardgour Road flow monitoring
site.

1 For surface water, which includes connected groundwater in terms of Water Plan Policy 6.4.1A. 



 

4 
 

 

25 A discussion of the issues involved with the transfer of primary allocation consents 
within the management of takes at low flows is found in Appendix 1 - Paragraphs 401 
– 419 of the Environment Court’s decision on the application for resource consents 
(Decision [2019] NZEnvC 179). 

26 The effect of these proposed provisions will be to: 

• Limit the granting of resource consents, for primary allocation takes of water 
exercised in each area, to the volume set for that part of the catchment; 

• More reliably ensure continuous flows in the main stem; 

• Help to ensure that actual flows in the river correspond to modelled flows for 1,640 
l/s of primary allocation and 550 l/s minimum flow under the provisionally 
consented abstraction regime; 

• Avoid the risk of further increases in losses of surface water to aquifers; 

• Sustain a higher degree of reliability of water supply to those dependent on lawful 
taking of water from the Lindis main stem; and/or 

• Enable ORC to decline consent applications for transfers that could adversely 
affect existing lawful taking. 

Court Directions 

27 The Environment Court has directed that ORC must consult with “farmers along the 
Lindis River in general, Lindis Catchment Group, Otago Fish and Game Council, and 
the local Tarras community.” 

28 The Court’s directions are set out in an order which is attached as Appendix 2. This 
letter is written in accordance with Paragraph 2 of the Court’s directions in Minute (Re 
PC5A) – 1 November 2019. 

How to provide your views 

29 You may provide your views and seek information by contacting Richard Pettinger by 
telephone on DDI 027 625 7604, or by email Richard pettinger@orc.govt.nz. 

30 Further information is available on the Council website or by following this link 
https://www.orc.govt.nz/plans-policies-reports/regional-plans-and-
polices/water/changes-made-operative-and-archives/proposed-plan-change-5a-
lindis-integrated-water-management 

31 Any response is due by 5.00pm on Friday 13th December 2019. It can be as hard 
copy, or preferably via an e-mail to Richard Pettinger. 
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Next steps 

32 Once the Council has received feedback, it will determine by 30 January 2020 whether 
it will recommend the splitting of the primary allocation limit into four as described 
above or will recommend an alternative approach for managing the potential risks 
associated with transfers. You will be advised in writing. 

 

 

Yours faithfully 

 

 

 

Gwyneth Elsum 

General Manager Strategy, Policy and Science      
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APPENDIX 1 : Paragraphs 401 – 419 of the Environment Court’s decision on the 
application for resource consents (Decision [2019] NZEnvC 179)   
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APPENDIX 2: Environment Court Minute 
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